

11-15-2005

## Election Day Holiday. Initiative Statute.

Follow this and additional works at: [http://repository.uchastings.edu/ca\\_ballot\\_inits](http://repository.uchastings.edu/ca_ballot_inits)

---

### Recommended Citation

Election Day Holiday. Initiative Statute. California Initiative 1165 (2005).  
[http://repository.uchastings.edu/ca\\_ballot\\_inits/1325](http://repository.uchastings.edu/ca_ballot_inits/1325)

This Initiative is brought to you for free and open access by the California Ballot Propositions and Initiatives at UC Hastings Scholarship Repository. It has been accepted for inclusion in Initiatives by an authorized administrator of UC Hastings Scholarship Repository. For more information, please contact [marcusc@uchastings.edu](mailto:marcusc@uchastings.edu).

SA2005RF0101

Sept.19, 2005 Monday

Ms. Tricia Knight  
Initiative Coordinator  
Office of the Attorney General  
State of California  
P. O. Box 994255  
Sacramento, Ca.  
94244-2550

RECEIVED  
SEP 22 2005

Dear Ms. Knight,  
Re- California State Holiday for Elections Day

INITIATIVE COORDINATOR  
ATTORNEY GENERAL'S OFFICE

Please, prepare a title and summary.

Thank you,

Roy R. Benson

Contact  
Web site – [www.stateholiday.com](http://www.stateholiday.com)

**12-POINT  
BOLDFACE  
TYPE**

**INITIATIVE MEASURE TO BE SUBMITTED DIRECTLY TO THE VOTERS**

The Attorney General of California has prepared the following title and summary of the chief purpose and points of the proposed measure:

(Here set forth the title and summary prepared by the Attorney General. This title and summary must also be printed across the top of each page of the petition whereon signatures are to appear.)

**Type: Roman  
Boldface not  
smaller than  
12-point**

**TO THE HONORABLE SECRETARY OF STATE OF CALIFORNIA**

We, the undersigned, registered, qualified voters of California, residents of \_\_\_\_\_ County (or City and County), hereby propose amendments to the Education Code and the Government Code, relating to making each statewide general election date established by law a state holiday, and petition the Secretary of State to submit the same to the voters of California for their adoption or rejection at the next succeeding general election or at any special statewide election held prior to that general election or otherwise provided by law. The proposed statutory amendments (full title and text of measure) read as follows:

An act to amend Sections 37220, 45203, 79020, and 88203 of the Education Code, and to amend Sections 6700 and 19853 of the Government Code, relating to state holidays.

SECTION 1. Section 37220 of the Education Code is amended to read:

37220. (a) Except as otherwise provided, the public schools shall close on the following holidays:

(1) January 1.

(2) The third Monday in January or Monday or Friday in the week in which January 15 occurs, known as "Dr. Martin Luther King, Jr. Day." On the Friday preceding which day the schools are closed, schools shall include exercises commemorating and directing attention to the history of the civil rights movement in the United States and particularly the role therein of Dr. Martin Luther King, Jr.

(3) The Monday or Friday of the week in which February 12 occurs, known as "Lincoln Day." On the day that school is in session prior to the day on which schools are closed for that purpose, all public schools and educational institutions throughout the state shall hold exercises in memory of Abraham Lincoln.

(4) The third Monday in February, known as "Washington Day." On the Friday preceding, all public schools and educational institutions throughout the state shall hold exercises in memory of George Washington.

(5) The last Monday in May, known as "Memorial Day."

(6) July 4.

(7) The first Monday in September, known as "Labor Day."

(8) Each statewide general election date.

(9) November 11, known as "Veterans Day."

~~(9)~~

(10) That Thursday in November proclaimed by the President as  
"Thanksgiving Day."

~~(10)~~

(11) December 25.

~~(11)~~

(12) All days appointed by the Governor for a public fast, thanksgiving, or holiday, and all special or limited holidays on which the Governor provides that the schools shall close.

~~(12)~~

(13) All days appointed by the President as a public fast, thanksgiving, or holiday, unless it is a special or limited holiday.

~~(13)~~

(14) Any other day designated as a holiday by the governing board of the school district.

(b) When any of the holidays on which the schools would be closed falls on Sunday, the public schools shall close on the Monday following.

(c) When any of the holidays on which the schools would be closed falls on Saturday, the public schools shall close on the preceding Friday, and that Friday shall be declared a state holiday.

(d) If any holiday on which the public schools are required to close pursuant to subdivision (a) occurs under federal law on a date different from the date specified in

subdivision (a), the governing board of any school district may close the public schools of the district on the date recognized by federal law and maintain classes on the date specified in subdivision (a).

(e) Except for Veterans Day, as designated in paragraph ~~(8)~~ (9) of subdivision (a), the governing board of a school district, by adoption of a resolution, may revise the date upon which the schools of the district close in observance of any of the holidays identified in subdivision (a).

(f) The governing board of a school district may not request a waiver of paragraph ~~(8)~~ (9) of subdivision (a) from the State Board of Education.

SEC. 2. Section 45203 of the Education Code is amended to read:

45203. (a) All probationary or permanent employees that are a part of the classified service shall be entitled to the following paid holidays provided they are in a paid status during any portion of the working day immediately preceding or succeeding the holiday: January 1, February 12 known as "Lincoln Day," the third Monday in February known as "Washington Day," the last Monday in May known as "Memorial Day," July 4, the first Monday in September known as "Labor Day," November 11 known as "Veterans Day," that Thursday in November proclaimed by the President as "Thanksgiving Day," December 25, every day appointed by the President, or the Governor of this state, as provided for in subdivisions (b) and (c) of Section 37220 for a public fast, thanksgiving or holiday, ~~or~~ any day declared a holiday under Section 1318 or 37222 for classified or certificated employees. School recesses during the Christmas, Easter, and mid-February periods shall not be considered holidays for classified employees who are normally required to work

during that period. However, this shall not be construed as affecting vacation rights specified in this section.

**Regular**

**(b) Regular employees of the district who are not normally assigned to duty during the school holidays of December 25 and January 1 shall be paid for those two holidays provided that they were in a paid status during any portion of the working day of their normal assignment immediately preceding or succeeding the holiday period.**

**When**

**(c) When a holiday listed in ~~this section~~ subdivision (a) falls on a Sunday, the following Monday shall be deemed to be the holiday in lieu of the day observed.**

When a holiday listed in this section falls on a Saturday, the preceding Friday shall be deemed to be the holiday in lieu of the day observed. When a classified employee is required to work on any of these holidays, he or she shall be paid compensation, or given compensating time off, for such work, in addition to the regular pay received for the holiday, at the rate of time and one-half the employee's regular rate of pay.

**The**

**(d) The provisions of Article 3 (commencing with Section 37220) of Chapter 2 of Part 22 shall not be construed to in any way limit the provisions of this section, nor shall anything in this section be construed to prohibit the governing board from adopting separate work schedules for the certificated and the classified services, or from providing holiday pay for employees who have not been in paid status on the days specified herein. Notwithstanding the adoption of separate work schedules for**

the certificated and the classified services, on any schoolday during which pupils would otherwise have been in attendance but are not and for which certificated personnel receive regular pay, classified personnel shall also receive regular pay whether or not they are required to report for duty that day.

**In**

(e) In addition to the other paid holidays specified in ~~this section~~ subdivision (a), the classified service may be entitled to a paid holiday on March 31 known as "Cesar Chavez Day," ~~and a paid holiday on the fourth Friday in September known as "Native American Day,"~~ and a paid holiday on each statewide general election date, provided they are in a paid status during any portion of the working day immediately preceding or succeeding the holiday, if the governing board, pursuant to a memorandum of understanding reached pursuant to Chapter 10.7 (commencing with Section 3540) of Division 4 of Title 1 of the Government Code, agrees to the paid holiday.

**This**

(f) This section shall apply to districts that have adopted the merit system in the same manner and effect as if it were a part of Article 6 (commencing with Section 45240).

SEC. 3. Section 79020 of the Education Code is amended to read:

79020. Except as otherwise provided the community colleges shall continue in session or close on specified holidays as follows:

(a) The community colleges shall close on January 1st, the third Monday in January, commencing in the 1989-90 fiscal year, known as "Dr. Martin Luther King,



Jr. Day," February 12th known as "Lincoln Day," the third Monday in February known as "Washington Day," the last Monday in May known as "Memorial Day," July 4th, the first Monday in September known as "Labor Day," each statewide general election date, November 11th known as "Veterans Day," that Thursday in November proclaimed by the President as "Thanksgiving Day," and December 25th.

(b) Any contractual provision between any community college district and its employees in effect on the effective date of the act that adds this subdivision shall prevail over any conflict regarding Dr. Martin Luther King, Jr. Day until the termination date of the contract or upon termination by mutual agreement of the parties, whichever occurs first.

(c) The Governor in appointing any other day for a public fast, thanksgiving, or holiday may provide whether the community colleges shall close on the day. If the Governor does not provide whether the community colleges shall close, they shall continue in session on all special or limited holidays appointed by the Governor, but shall close on all other days appointed by the Governor for a public fast, thanksgiving, or holiday.

(d) The community colleges shall close on every day appointed by the President as a public fast, thanksgiving, or holiday, unless it is a special or limited holiday.

(e) The community colleges shall continue in session on all legal holidays other than those designated by or pursuant to this section, and shall hold proper exercises commemorating the day.

(f) When any of the holidays on which the schools would be closed fall on Sunday, the community colleges shall close on the Monday following, except that (1) if Lincoln Day falls on a Sunday, the community colleges may observe this holiday on the preceding or following Friday, the following Monday, or the following Tuesday, and maintain classes on the date specified in subdivision (a) where applicable, or (2) if Lincoln Day falls on a Monday, the community colleges may observe this holiday on the preceding or following Friday, that Monday, or the following Tuesday, and maintain classes on the date specified in subdivision (a) where applicable.

(g) When any of the holidays on which the schools would be closed, except Lincoln Day, fall on Saturday, the community colleges shall close on the preceding Friday, and that Friday shall be declared a state holiday.

(h) If any holiday on which the community colleges are required to close pursuant to subdivision (a) occurs under federal law on a date different than the date specified in subdivision (a), the governing board of any community college district may close the community colleges of the district on the date recognized by federal law and maintain classes on the date specified in subdivision (a).

(i) When Veterans Day would fall on Tuesday, the governing board of a community college district may close the colleges on the preceding Monday, and maintain classes on the date specified in subdivision (a). When Veterans Day would fall on Wednesday, the governing board of a community college district may close the colleges on either the preceding Monday or the following Friday, and maintain classes on the date specified in subdivision (a). When Veterans Day would fall on

Thursday, the governing board of a community college district may close the colleges on the following Friday, and maintain classes on the date specified in subdivision (a).

(j) When Lincoln Day would fall on Tuesday, the governing board of a community college district may close the colleges on the preceding Monday, the preceding Friday, or the following Friday, and maintain classes on the date specified in subdivision (a) where appropriate. When Lincoln Day would fall on Wednesday, the governing board of a community college district may close the colleges on the preceding Monday, the preceding Friday, or the following Friday, and maintain classes on the date specified in subdivision (a). When Lincoln Day would fall on Thursday, the governing board of a community college district may close the colleges on the preceding Friday or the following Friday, and maintain classes on the date specified in subdivision (a). When Lincoln Day falls on Saturday, the governing board of a community college district may close the colleges on the preceding Friday or the following Friday, and maintain classes on the date specified in subdivision (a) where appropriate.

(k) In addition to the holidays specified in subdivision (a), a community college may close on March 31 known as "Cesar Chavez Day" if the governing board, pursuant to a memorandum of understanding reached pursuant to Chapter 10.7 (commencing with Section 3540) of Division 4 of Title 1 of the Government Code, agrees to close the community college for that purpose.

(l) In addition to the holidays specified in subdivision (a), a community college may close on the fourth Friday in September known as "Native American Day" if the governing board, pursuant to a memorandum of understanding reached pursuant to

Chapter 10.7 (commencing with Section 3540) of Division 4 of Title 1 of the Government Code, agrees to close the community college for that purpose.

(m) Nothing in this section is to be interpreted as authorizing a community college district governing board to maintain community colleges in its district for a lesser number of days during the college year than the minimum established by law.

SEC. 4. Section 88203 of the Education Code is amended to read:

88203. (a) All probationary or permanent employees who are part of the classified service shall be entitled to the following paid holidays if they are in a paid status during any portion of the working day immediately preceding or succeeding the holiday: January 1, February 12 known as "Lincoln Day," the third Monday in February known as "Washington Day," the last Monday in May known as "Memorial Day," July 4, the first Monday in September known as "Labor Day," November 11 known as "Veterans Day," that Thursday in November proclaimed by the President as "Thanksgiving Day," December 25, every day appointed by the President, or the Governor of this state, as provided for in subdivisions (c) and (d) of Section 79020 for a public fast, thanksgiving or holiday, or any day declared a holiday under Section 1318 for classified or academic employees. College recesses during the Christmas and Easter periods shall not be considered holidays for classified employees who are normally required to work during that period; provided, however, that this shall not be construed as affecting vacation rights specified in this section.

Regular

(b) Regular employees of the district who are not normally assigned to duty during the college holidays of December 25 and January 1 shall be paid for those two

holidays if they were in a paid status during any portion of the working day of their normal assignment immediately preceding or succeeding the holiday period.

~~When~~

(c) When a holiday herein listed falls on a Sunday, the following Monday shall be deemed to be the holiday in lieu of the day observed. When a holiday herein listed falls on a Saturday, the preceding Friday shall be deemed to be the holiday in lieu of the day observed. When a classified employee is required to work on any of said holidays, he or she shall be paid compensation, or given compensating time off, for such work, in addition to the regular pay received for the holiday, at the rate of time and one-half his or her regular rate of pay.

~~Article 3~~

(d) (1) Article 3 (commencing with Section 79020) of Chapter 8 of Part 48 of this division shall not be construed to in any way limit this section, nor shall anything in this section be construed to prohibit the governing board from adopting separate work schedules for the academic and the classified services, or from providing holiday pay for employees who have not been in paid status on the days specified herein. ~~Notwithstanding~~

(2) Notwithstanding the adoption of separate work schedules for the academic and the classified services, on any schoolday during which students would otherwise have been in attendance, but are not and for which faculty receive regular pay, classified personnel shall also receive regular pay whether or not they are required to report for duty that day.

~~In~~

(e) In addition to the other paid holidays specified in ~~this section~~ subdivision (a), the classified service may be entitled to a paid holiday on March 31 known as "Cesar Chavez Day" ~~and~~ a paid holiday on the fourth Friday in September known as "Native American Day," and a paid holiday on each statewide general election date, if they are in a paid status during any portion of the working day immediately preceding or succeeding the holiday, if the governing board, pursuant to a memorandum of understanding reached pursuant to Chapter 10.7 (commencing with Section 3540) of Division 4 of Title 1 of the Government Code, agrees to the paid holiday.

This

(f) This section shall apply to districts that have adopted the merit system in the same manner and effect as if it were a part of Article 3 (commencing with Section 88060).

SEC. 5. Section 6700 of the Government Code is amended to read:

6700. ~~The~~ (a) Subject to subdivision (b), the holidays in this state are the following:

(a)

(1) Every Sunday.

(b)

(2) January 1st.

(c)

(3) The third Monday in January, known as "Dr. Martin Luther King, Jr. Day."

(d)

(4) February 12th, known as "Lincoln Day."

~~(e)~~

(5) The third Monday in February.

~~(f)~~

(6) March 31st known as "Cesar Chavez Day."

~~(g)~~

(7) The last Monday in May.

~~(h)~~

(8) July 4th.

~~(i)~~

(9) The first Monday in September.

~~(j)~~

(10) September 9th, known as "Admission Day."

~~(k)~~

(11) The second Monday in October, known as "Columbus Day."

~~(l)~~

(12) Each statewide general election date.

(13) November 11th, known as "Veterans Day."

~~(m)~~

(14) December 25th.

~~(n)~~

(15) Good Friday from 12 noon until 3 p.m.

~~(o)~~

(16) Every day appointed by the President or Governor for a public fast, thanksgiving, or holiday.

Except

(b) (1) Paragraphs (3) and (6) of subdivision (a), and paragraph (16) of subdivision (a), except for the Thursday in November appointed as Thanksgiving Day, this subdivision and subdivisions (e) and (f) shall do not apply to a city, county, or district unless made applicable by charter, or by ordinance or resolution of the governing body thereof.

If

(2) If the provisions of this section are in conflict with the provisions of a memorandum of understanding reached pursuant to Chapter 12 (commencing with Section 3560) of Division 4 of Title 1, the memorandum of understanding shall be controlling without further legislative action, except that if those provisions of a memorandum of understanding require the expenditure of funds, the provisions shall not become effective unless approved by the Legislature in the annual Budget Act.

SEC. 6. Section 19853 of the Government Code is amended to read:

19853. (a) Except as provided in subdivision (c), all employees shall be entitled to the following holidays: January 1, the third Monday in January, February 12, the third Monday in February, March 31, the last Monday in May, July 4, the first Monday in September, the second Monday in October, November 11, the day after Thanksgiving, December 25, the day chosen by an employee pursuant to Section 19854, each statewide general election date, and every day appointed by the Governor of this state for a public fast, thanksgiving, or holiday.



**H**

(b) If a day listed in ~~this~~ subdivision (a) falls on a Sunday, the following Monday shall be deemed to be the holiday in lieu of the day observed. If November 11th falls upon a Saturday, the preceding Friday shall be deemed to be the holiday in lieu of the day observed. Any employee who may be required to work on any of the holidays included in this subdivision, and who does work on any of these holidays, shall be entitled to be paid compensation or given compensating time off for that work in accordance with their classification's assigned workweek group. For the purpose of computing the number of hours worked, time when an employee is excused from work because of holidays, sick leave, vacation, annual leave, or compensating time off, shall be considered as time worked by the employee.

(b)

(c) If the provisions of subdivision (a) or (b) are in conflict with the provisions of a memorandum of understanding reached pursuant to Section 3517.5, the memorandum of understanding shall be controlling without further legislative action, except that if the provisions of a memorandum of understanding require the expenditure of funds, the provisions shall not become effective unless approved by the Legislature in the annual Budget Act.

(e)

(d) Any employee, who is either excluded from the definition of state employee in subdivision (c) of Section 3513, or is a nonelected officer or employee of the executive branch of government who is not a member of the civil service, shall be

entitled to the following holidays, with pay, in addition to any official state holiday appointed by the Governor:

(1) January 1, the third Monday in January, February 12, the third Monday in February, March 31, the last Monday in May, July 4, the first Monday in September, the second Monday in October, November 11, Thanksgiving Day, the day after Thanksgiving, December 25, each statewide general election date, and any personal holiday chosen pursuant to Section 19854. The department head or designee may require an employee to provide five working days' advance notice before a personal holiday is taken, and may deny use subject to operational needs.

(2) When November 11 falls on a Saturday, employees shall be entitled to the preceding Friday as a holiday with pay.

(3) When a holiday, other than a personal holiday or November 11, falls on a Saturday, an employee shall, regardless of whether he or she works on the holiday, only accrue an additional eight hours of personal holiday credit per fiscal year for the holiday. The holiday credit shall be accrued on the actual date of the holiday and shall be used within the same fiscal year.

(4) When a holiday other than a personal holiday falls on Sunday, employees shall be entitled to the following Monday as a holiday with pay.

(5) Employees who are required to work on a holiday shall be entitled to pay or compensating time off for this work in accordance with their classification's assigned workweek group.

(6) Less than full-time employees shall receive holidays in accordance with Department of Personnel Administration rules.

(d)

(e) (1) Any employee, as defined in subdivision (c) of Section 3513, may elect to receive eight hours of holiday credit for the fourth Friday in September, known as "Native American Day," in lieu of receiving eight hours of personal holiday credit in accordance with Section 19854.

(2) It is not the intent of the Legislature, by the amendments to this subdivision that add this paragraph, to increase the personal holiday credit that an employee receives pursuant to Section 19854.

(e)

(f) This section shall become effective with regard to the March 31 holiday and each statewide general election date only when the Department of Personnel Administration notifies the Legislature that the language contained in this section has been agreed to by all exclusive representatives, and the Department of Personnel Administration authorizes this holiday to be applied to employees designated as excluded from the Ralph C. Dills Act (Chapter 10.3 (commencing with Section 3512), Division 4, Title 1), and the necessary statutes are amended to reflect this change.